¥a¥ Shropshire

Council

Shropshire Council

Telford & Wrekin Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall
COUNCIL Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND
Date: 18 March 2014
My Ref:
Your Ref:
Committee:
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: Wednesday, 26 March 2014
Time: 9.30 am
Venue: The Council Chamber, Wellington Civic Centre, Larkin Way, Tan

Bank, Wellington, Telford, TF1 1LX

You are requested to attend the above meeting.
The Agenda is attached

Members of Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Gerald Dakin (Co-Chair) David Beechey (Co-Optee)
Derek White (Co-Chair) lan Hulme (Co-Optee)
Tracey Huffer Mandy Thorn (Co-Optee)
Simon Jones Dilys Davis (Co-Optee)
Veronica Fletcher Jean Gulliver (Co-Optee)
John Minor Richard Shaw (Co-Optee)

Your Scrutiny Officers are:

Fiona Bottrill
Tel: 01952 383113
Email: Fiona.Bottrill@telford.gov.uk

Martin Stevens
Tel: 01743 252722
Email: martin.stevens@shropshire.gov.uk

www.shropshire.gov.uk
General Enquiries: 0845 678 9000

Printed on recycled paper




AGENDA

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest

Update on Future Fit (Pages 1 - 18)

David Evans and Caron Morton, Joint Programme Senior Responsible Officers,
and Peter Spilsbury, Future Fit Programme Director, will make a presentation to
update the Committee on the progress of the Future Fit Programme. This will
include progress since the December JHOSC meeting, timescales for the
Programme and the Project Execution Document (including the principles for
joint working).

Also attending for this item, and the other agenda items below, are Adrian
Osbourne and Debbie Vogler (Shrewsbury & Telford Hospital NHS Trust) and
Julie Thorby (Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust)

Future Fit Clinical Model of Care (Pages 19 - 48)

Bill Gowans, Joint Chair of the Future Fit Clinical Design Group, David Evans,
Caron Morton and Peter Spilsbury will present the emerging clinical model of
care discussed at the Future Fit Programme Board on 10 March 2014.
Future Fit Benefits Realisation Plan (Pages 49 - 60)

Peter Spilsbury, David Evans and Caron Morton will present the Benefits
Realisation Plan discussed at the Future Fit Programme Board on 10 March
2014.

Evaluation Criteria and Process

Peter Spilsbury, David Evans and Caron Morton will explain the evaluation
criteria and process for the selection of the options and preferred option for the
Future Fit Programme.

Future Fit Alignment with Other Strategic Plans

Also attending for this item are Cllr Arnold England (Cabinet Member: Adult

Social Care, Telford & Wrekin Council), Cllr Lee Chapman (Portfolio Holder:
Adult Services, Shropshire Council), Paul Taylor (Interim Director: Health, Care



& Wellbeing, Telford & Wrekin Council) and Stephen Chandler (Director of Adult
Services, Shropshire Council)

Joint HOSC Work Programme

To agree the issues to be considered by the Committee at future meetings



This page is intentionally left blank



e °

he 1P11 MJ \1"H_11\_7(‘qt ne

Programme Update Report

Report to: Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Subject: Programme Update Report
Report by: Senior Responsible Officers — Caron Morton & David Evans
Date: 26" March 2014
1 OVERALL

1.1 Programme Plan

1.1.1 Phase 1 - Programme Set-up & High-Level Vision

Phase 1 of the Programme has now been completed. Following the approval of the
Programme Execution Plan (PEP) at the January 2014 Programme Board, the PEP has since
been received by sponsor Boards as follows:

* Shrewsbury & Telford Hospital NHS Trust — approved 30" January 2014;

e Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust — Case for Change approved 23" January
2014, PEP to be considered 20™ March 2014;

e Shropshire CCG — approved 12 February 2014;
* Telford and Wrekin CCG —approved 11" March 2014, and;
* Powys LHB —to be considered on 16" April 2014.

In approving the PEP, the Programme Board initially deferred consideration of the question
of Programme decision making processes. A proposal for these processes has since been
developed and, at its meeting in March 2014, the Programme Board discussed these and
asked the two SROs to consider them further outside the meeting with emphasis on the
most appropriate mechanism by which the two CCGs could consider the Programme’s final
recommendation and deliver a collective agreement ( new national guidance having clarified
that it is CCGs that are the decision makers for reconfiguration )

Key elements of the PEP are the positive Case for Change (Appendix 1) and the Programme’s
Principles for Joint Working (Appendix 2). The Committee is invited formally to endorse
these key documents.

The work of the Programme is overseen by a multi-stakeholder Board (containing the two
local Directors of Adult Social Care and observed by a Joint HOSC Chair) and is managed by a
Programme Team. In addition, a core group of Programme Sponsors is being formed to
improve the speed and pace at which the Programme can operate.

Strrzpolu.2 Page 1



Shaping healtt ogether

'. ‘ futu:gﬁt

As planned, a full-time and highly experienced Programme Director, Mike Sharon, takes up
his post in early April as part of the support team from NHS Central Midlands Commissioning
Support Unit. Peter Spilsbury, Director of the Strategy Unit at CMCSU, will continue to
contribute senior advisor input as Assignment Director . Paul Elkin , who has supported the
Programme on an interim basis since last autumn ends his commitment to us in April and
was formally thanked at the Programme Board for his important contribution in the initial
stages of Programme set-up.

Under the Programme Team the detailed work of the Programme is conducted by the
following five workstreams:

e Clinical Design;

e Activity & Capacity;

* Engagement & Communications;

* Finance, and;

e Assurance (attended by HOSC Officers and a Joint HOSC Chair).

Updates on the activity of these workstreams are provided in Section 2 of this report,
including the development of the high level clinical vision.

1.1.2 Phase 2 - Development of Models of Care

The key task in Phase 2 of the Programme is to further develop the high level clinical models
and to build activity and capacity projections which reflect those models. This will then
enable a range of options to be identified in Phase 3.

The clinical work completed in Phase 1 is far more ambitious and wide ranging than had
been anticipated. It is greatly to the credit of local clinicians that they have devoted such
time and energy to leading the design process. There have been major concerns that a
clinical design that focuses simply on hospitals will not be radical enough to deliver a
sustainable solution. Thus the notion of painting the full canvas has emerged, out of which
the FutureFit Programme will take forward the elements within its scope and, in relation to
elements outside of its scope, will define the critical dependencies to be taken forward in
parallel by commissioners.

A report on the emerging clinical models is included as a separate item on the meeting
agenda (Appendix B). Further work to test these models is planned for the coming months
before the Programme Board is asked to approve an overall model of care. This work will
include:

e |terative testing of the model against specific patient/clinical scenarios and cross-
cutting themes (e.g. Mental Health, Social Care, IT);

* Further defining the evidence base for the proposed model;
* Demonstrating alignment with JSNAs and Health and Wellbeing Board strategies;
* Increased patient and public engagement, and;

e External Clinical Assurance.

Strrzpolu.2 Page22



futureht

Sh 1P1TC he rogetner

To do justice to the emerging models, and to maintain and extend the engagement we have
had to date, will require several more months of work. Without this there is the risk of
moving too quickly towards a decision that will not stand up to subsequent scrutiny and,
indeed, will not finally deliver the radical change that local patients and clinicians believe to
be necessary. It is extremely important that we get the process right. This is truly a once-in-a-
generation opportunity.

As a result, the Programme Board has agreed a change to the initial Programme timetable, as
set out below:

* The clinical design and activity & capacity projections phase is extended to the end of
August (instead of April);

e There is an 8-week period for extended public engagement on the model of care
during October and November, with the outcomes of this being signed-off by the
Board in December, and;

* Preliminary work to develop a provisional short-list of options commences in October
and is brought to the Board for formal approval in December alongside the outcome
of the engagement process.

During the proposed extended period, further work would also be undertaken before the
May 2014 Board meeting on:

e The overall financial framework;
* The Engagement & Communications Plan, and;
* The options evaluation process.

The Future Fit process is one of genuine discovery. Nothing has been predetermined so, in
order to produce for our patients a clinical model that is fully owned and understood (and
that we are confident can be delivered), it will be essential to work through the emerging
models in detail and to test them through several iterations, facilitated by extensive
engagement with the public and with clinicians. The new timeline still however allows a
major extended public engagement in October /November in line with expectations and also
in line with recommended best practice (the Consultation Institute) which emphasises the
criticality of allowing sufficient time to engage thoroughly on the model of care.

1.1.3 Phase 3 - Option Development & Appraisal

The purpose of Phase 3 is to develop and appraise a range of options for how the clinical
model could be delivered, leading to the identification of a preferred option. It is also
proposed that the timetable for this phase is extended. The Programme Board at its meeting
in March received a suggested revised timeline that would see formal consultation on the
preferred option commencing in June 2015 (after the General Election). The Board in
considering this asked the Core Sponsors Group to have further discussions to see if this
could be brought forward. This was because of the perceived urgency of establishing a clear
position on the future of the emergency services element in particular in order to create the
conditions whereby key staff can be retained and recruited in the certain knowledge of
future plans and any interim moves required to maintain safety can be aligned with that
plan.

Strrzpolu.2 Pag@ 3



futureht

Sh 1P1TC he rogetner

The Core Sponsors met on 14" March and have agreed to map out the implications of a
timeline which allows the development of models of care to carry through to end August
with extended engagement thereafter ( as above) , but which aims to go to formal
consultation straight after Christmas on the preferred option for emergency and high acuity
care as a key component of that overall clinical model . This would allow the consultation to
close prior to electoral ‘purdah’. To be able to do this would require some significant work on
possible site options etc to be undertaken in parallel, and therefore at risk. It will be vital to
ensure that this is presented to the public and wider clinical body with great care and with
maximum transparency if trust in the authenticity of a Programme ‘without
predetermination’ ( the key ask from Call to Action) is not to be undermined.

We would welcome a discussion with the Joint HOSC on this proposed approach and timeline
for public engagement and consultation.

1.2 Risk Register
A Programme Risk Register has been developed and currently contains two red rated risks:

*  Programme resources — this mostly relates to the significant resources now required
for communication and engagement work and a plan is in place to secure this
resource, and;

e Inability of stakeholder organisations to release key staff for the Programme — this
has highlighted the need for those organisations to agree with key staff the time and
capacity required.

The Programme Team is currently further developing the risk register and associated risk
management procedures for the Programme in line with best practice.

1.3 Benefits Realisation Plan

A Benefits Realisation Plan for the Programme continues to be developed including with
some extremely helpful input from the Clinical Reference Group. The emerging draft is
included as a separate item on the meeting agenda (Appendix C), and will be further
developed under the leadership of the Programme Team over the coming weeks, including
input from patients.

1.4 Gateway 0 Review

The national Government Gateway Review process seeks to provide an assessment of
confidence in the ability of the Programme to deliver its stated objectives. It seeks also to
provide recommendations, where appropriate, to improve the likelihood of successful
delivery. Gateway O reviews are intended to support projects with constructive feedback in
the earliest stages.

A wide range of some 26 stakeholders were interviewed by the Review Team from 3" to 5™
March, including Joint HOSC Chairs.

The Gateway Team rated the Programme as Amber, which is in line with expectations at such
an early stage. They made positive comment on the commitment and energy they witnessed
and on the extent of agreement about the importance of the Programme and the case for
change that it was seeking to address. They noted the high calibre of the personnel they
interviewed and made a number of recommendations including the need to:

Strrzpolu.2 Pag e44



Shaping healtt ogether

'. ‘ futu:gﬁt

. Review the size of the programme Board to make it more manageable (see
Section 1.1.1 above);

J Improve risk management processes (see Section 1.2 above), and;

. Increase the resources available for communications and engagement activities
(see Section 2.3 below).

The final report is made in confidence to Programme SROs but will be made public for
transparency and openness. Where recommendations are made, the Programme Team will
develop and implement an appropriate action plan.

1.5 External Clinical Assurance

The Programme Board has approved a proposal for External Clinical Assurance through the
National Clinical Advisory Team (NCAT). Since that time it has emerged that NCAT is to cease
to exist and its functions to be taken over by regional Clinical Senates. The Programme is
currently in discussion with the West Midlands Clinical Senate with a view to agreeing
arrangements for both informal and formal engagement around the clinical model of care.

2 WORKSTREAM UPDATES

2.1 Clinical Design

The workstream continues to meet fortnightly to oversee the clinical design work. It has
prepared and facilitated a second successful meeting of the Clinical Reference Group (CRG)
which was attended by 40 clinicians and others. Draft clinical model frameworks were
reviewed and further developed, and very helpful input into the Benefits Realisation Plan
was received. The next CRG meeting is on March 26th.

The outputs of CRG meeting have been used by sub group leads to inform the development
key clinical constraints and opportunities — ‘system drivers’ — which have subsequently been
used as a basis for setting out high level models of care. This work has been undertaken by
three sub groups: Acute & Episodic, Long Term Conditions & Frailty and Planned Care. Each
group met twice during February. In addition, a series of patient focus groups have been
held. A summary of this work is on the Programme Board agenda.

The sub groups now need to refine their models and to identify patient types at various
points in their designs in order to enable activity and capacity modelling to be undertaken.

2.2 Activity & Capacity

Seven acute hospital workshops have been held to agree the clinical parameters on which
activity and capacity modelling of the so-called ‘do minimum’ option should be based. The
projected impact of these parameters has been reported back and discussed by the
workstream.

Two community hospital workshops have also been held. The group agreed that the results
reflected a radical shift in the utilization of community hospital beds in terms of (a) reducing
length of stay (b) increasing the proportion of admissions/occupied bed days for ‘step up’
rather than ‘step down’.

Strrzpolu.2 Pag@ 5



fut_ureht

onapi re rtogetner

The outputs of the community workshops is published along with a summary report, and the
acute output is due to be available shortly.

A key conclusion of these workshops is that marginal change within the current service
models would not, of itself, be sufficient to meet the economic challenges faced in the
medium term.

2.3 Engagement & Communications

An Engagement and Communications plan has been worked on but is now going to be
developed through a co-production event with key stakeholders in order to respond to some
of the concerns raised about this aspect of the Programmes activities. Activities to date
include:

e Issuing of final branding templates;

* Work to develop a programme website;

e Publication of the first Programme Bulletin, and;

* Planning and delivery of 3 patient focus group events.

Urgent consideration is being given by the Sponsors to the resources required to support
the proposed extended engagement activities (at the outset a budget was not established
pending further development of the engagement plan)

2.4 Finance

The workstream has established a schedule of meetings and agreed an approach to, and
structure of, a single financial model for the Programme. Additional external resource has
been procured to support the development of the model. This is an important development
as experience elsewhere shows that failure to jointly develop a single financial model can
seriously hamper Programme success.

Work has also commenced to assess the likely future capital investment capacity of provider
Trusts and the future recurring affordability envelope for Commissioners.

Finance leads have raised a concern about their ability to devote sufficient time to the
Programme (see item 1.2 above).

2.5 Assurance
There have been three meetings of the Assurance Workstream:

* The first focused on a detailed review of the workstream responsibilities as set out in
the Programme Execution Plan to ensure that each member had a common
understanding of the nature, scope and extent of these responsibilities. There was an
in-depth discussion on the development of the Assurance Plan which was circulated
to all Workstream Members and all Workstream Leads for observation and comment.

* The second meeting focused on a line by line review of the Assurance Plan and areas
for refinement and review. The Workstream also reviewed the arrangements for the
OGC Gateway Review taking place over 3rd — 5th March 2014 and considered the first
iterations of the Benefits Realisation Plan and Risk Register.

Strrzpolu.2 Page66



futureﬁt

shaping healthcare together

At its third meeting the workstream agreed the final draft assurance plan for
consideration by the Programme Board. A paper was also received setting out how
the Programme might work productively with the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

As part of developing the overall assurance plan, the workstream has prepared a matrix of
key decisions required and will be clarifying the actions required by each sponsor Board:

Programme Execution Plan/ Case for Change
Clinical Model of Care

Benefits Realisation Plan

Evaluation Criteria & Process

Selection of short list of Options

Selection of Preferred Option

Consultation Document

Outline Business Case

The Programme invites the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to advise which
of these key decisions it would expect to consider formally.

Caron Morton & David Evans

Programme Senior Responsible Officers

Strrzpolu.2 Page7 7



futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

Attachment A
Case for Change

Strrzpolu.2 Page 8



futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

Attachment B
Principles for Joint Working

Strrzpolu.2 Page 9



futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

Attachment C
Emerging Clinical Models of Care

Strrzpolu.2 I:)ag@J 10



futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

Attachment d
Draft Benefits Realisation Plan

Strrzpolu.2 Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

The Case for Change

Background

There are already some very good health services in Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin. They have
developed over many years to try to best meet the needs and expectations of the populations
served, including that of Mid-Wales. Nevertheless, when we look at the changing needs of the
population now and that forecast for the coming years; when we look at the quality standards
that we should aspire to for our population, as medicine becomes ever more sophisticated; and
when we look at the economic environment that the NHS must live within; then it becomes
obvious that the time has come to look again at how we design services so we can meet the
needs of our population and provide excellent healthcare services for the next 20 years.

When considering the pattern of services currently provided, our local clinicians and indeed many
of those members of the public who have responded to the recent Call to Action consultation,
accept that there is a case for making significant change provided there is no predetermination
and that there is full engagement in thinking through the options. They see the opportunity for:

* Better clinical outcomes through bringing specialists together, treating a higher volume of
cases routinely so as to maintain and grow skills

* Reduced morbidity and mortality through ensuring a greater degree of consultant-delivered
clinical decision-making more hours of the day and more days of the week through bringing
teams together to spread the load

e A pattern of services that by better meeting population needs, by delivering quality
comparable with the best anywhere, by working through resilient clinical teams, can become
highly attractive to the best workforce and can allow the rebuilding of staff morale

e Better adjacencies between services through redesign and bringing them together

* Improved environments for care

¢ A better match between need and levels of care through a systematic shift towards greater
care in the community and in the home

e A reduced dependence on hospitals as a fall-back for inadequate provision elsewhere and
instead hospitals doing to the highest standards what they are really there to do (higher
dependency care and technological care)

e A far more coordinated and integrated pattern of care, across the NHS and across other
sectors such as social care and the voluntary sector, with reduced duplication and better
placing of the patient at the centre of care

They see the need and the potential to do this in ways which recognise absolutely the differing
needs and issues facing our most dispersed rural populations and our urban populations too.

This then is the positive case for change.....

...... the opportunity to improve the quality of care we provide to our changing population.

Shm5oknco

Page 13



futur}eﬁ\i; NHS

1ping healthca

The Challenges

Our local clinicians and respondents to the Call to Action also see this opportunity to
systematically improve care as being a necessary response to how we address the many
challenges faced by the service as it moves forward into the second and third decades of the 21
century.

These challenges are set out below - they are largely outside our control and we have to adapt
our services to meet them:

Changes in our population profile - The remarkable and welcome improvement in the life
expectancy of older people that has been experienced across the UK in recent years is
particularly pronounced in Shropshire where the population over 65 has increased by 25% in
just 10 years. This growth is forecast to continue over the next decade and more. As a result
the pattern of demand for services has shifted with greater need for the type of services that
can support frailer people, often with multiple long-term conditions, to continue to live with
dignity and independence at home and in the community.

Changing patterns of illness - Long-term conditions are on the rise as well, due to changing
lifestyles. The means we need to move the emphasis away from services that support short-
term, episodic illness and infections towards services that support earlier interventions to
improve health and deliver sustained continuing support, again in the community.

Higher expectations - Quite rightly, the population demands the highest quality of care and also a
greater convenience of care, designed around the realities of their daily lives. For both
reasons, there is a push towards 7-day provision or extended hours of some services, and both
of these require a redesign of how we work given the inevitability of resource constraints.

Clinical standards and developments in medical technology - Specialisation in medical and other
clinical training has brought with it significant advances as medical technology and capability
have increased over the years. But it also brings challenges. It is no longer acceptable nor
possible to staff services with generalists or juniors and the evidence shows, that for
particularly serious conditions, to do so risks poorer outcomes. Staff are, of course, aware of
this. If they are working in services that, for whatever reason, cannot meet accepted
professional standards, morale falls and staff may seek to move somewhere that can offer
these standards. It is also far more difficult to attract new staff to work in such a service.
Clinicians are a scarce and valuable resource. We must seek to deploy them to greatest effect.

Economic challenges - The NHS budget has grown year on year for the first 60 years of its life
...... in one decade across the turn of the 21st century its budget doubled in real terms. But
now the world economy and the UK economy within that is in a different place. The NHS will
at best have a static budget going forward. And yet the changing patterns of population and
resultant need, the increasing costs of ever improving medical technology, the difficulties in
simply driving constant productivity improvements in a service that is 75% staff costs and that
works to deliver care to people through people, mean that without changing the basic pattern
of services then costs will rapidly outstrip available resources and services will face the chaos
that always arises from deficit crises.

Shm5oknco

Page 14



-
futurefit NHS|
Shaping healthcare together

Opportunity costs in quality of service - In Shropshire and Telford and Wrekin the inherited
pattern of services, especially hospital services, across multiple sites means that services are
struggling to avoid fragmentation and are incurring additional costs of duplication and
additional pressures in funding. The clinical and financial sustainability of acute hospital
services has been a concern for more than a decade. Shropshire has a large enough
population to support a full range of acute general hospital services, but splitting these
services over two sites is increasingly difficult to maintain without compromising the quality
and safety of the service.

Most pressingly, the Acute Trust currently runs two full A&E departments and does not have a
consultant delivered service 16 hours/day 7 days a week. Even without achieving Royal
College standards the Trust currently has particular medical workforce recruitment issues
around A&E services, stroke, critical care and anaesthetic cover. All of these services are
currently delivered on two sites though stroke services have recently been brought together
on an interim basis. This latter move has delivered measurable improvements in clinical
outcomes.

Impact on accessing services for populations living in two urban centres and much more
sparsely populated rural communities - In Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin there are distinctive
populations. Particular factors include our responsibility for meeting the health needs of
sparsely populated rural areas in the county, and that services provided in our geography can
also be essential to people in parts of Wales. Improved and timely access to services is a very
real issue and one which the public sees as a high priority. We have a network of provision
across Community Hospitals that can be part of the redesign of services to increase local care.

Call to Action

In November 2013 we ran a major consultation exercise with public and clinicians under the
national Call to Action for the NHS. The response was very clear in saying that the public wanted
full engagement in thinking through options for the future and that nothing should be
predetermined. Nevertheless, in the light of the factors described above, there was real
consensus between public and clinicians about the following:

* An acceptance of there being a case for making significant change;

e A belief that this should be clinically-led and with extensive public involvement;

e A belief that there were real opportunities to better support people in managing their own
health and to provide more excellent care in the community and at home;

* An agreement that hospitals are currently misused. This is not deliberate but as a result of
poor design of the overall system and the lack of well understood and properly resourced
alternatives;

* A belief that it is possible to design a new pattern of services that can offer excellence in
meeting the distinctive and particular needs of the rural and urban populations of this
geography - but if we are to succeed we must avoid being constrained by history, habit and
politics.

Shm5oknco

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



=]
futurefit NHS
Shaping rether

1ealthcare togethe

Our ‘Moral Compass’ - Principles for Joint Working

Given the ‘Case for Change’ and the goals and objectives of the Programme, it is recognised by all
parties that complex and difficult decisions lie ahead if this Programme is to succeed in delivering
the improvements to care and to health that we seek for the populations we serve. There are
several potential trade-offs which cannot be avoided. In every one of these there will be a
balance to be found, but one which can never satisfy every individual interest:

§ The ‘common good’ (for all who look to services in this geography for their health care) versus
the individual or locally specific good ( the preferences of sub groups );

§ The present versus the future;
§ Organisational interest versus public interest;

§ One priority versus another when resources are limited.
It is the role of leaders to reach decisions on these, and to do so transparently and objectively.

The Programme is a collective endeavour because all who are party to it - sponsors and
participants - recognise that this is the only way that the scale of the challenge and opportunity
for this whole geography can be met. But working collectively, whilst still acting as separate
statutory organisations, requires agreement on what we have called a ‘Moral Compass’ - ways of
working designed to help navigate through when it gets difficult and when the ‘trade-offs’” have to
be decided jointly.

We have agreed the following principles for our Programme - we will hold ourselves to account
against them, and would ask others to do the same:

§ We are concerned with the interests of all of the populations in England and Wales who use
hospital services provided within the territories of Shropshire and Telford and Wrekin. We
desire to maximise benefit for that whole population. Whilst our decisions seek to deliver the
greatest benefit to the whole population we serve, we will always consider the consequences
of any options for either specific local populations or for the needs of minority and deprived
groups and will be explicit about how we weight these and our rationale for so doing.

§ Participant organisations will individually sign up to the single version of the Case for Change
and, at the appropriate point, to a single shared strategic vision and high level clinical model
that arises out of the Programme and its response to the Call to Action and other engagement
processes. This will be in addition to the collective sign-up represented by the Programme
Board agreeing the Programme Execution Plan.

§ The Programme will agree, in advance of its key decision—making on the selection of options,
an objective set of criteria that will be employed, and these will also be signed-up to by
individual constituent organisations at that stage. These will explicitly address the basis for
considering the trade-offs referenced earlier.

§ We will make shared decisions on which innovations to roll out at scale, recognising that any
one might not always favour all parties and that some sacrifice for the common good will be
necessary.

Page 17



futur}eﬁ\i; NHS

1ping healthca

s We will openly consider all options that can enhance our ability to reach collective decisions
on key issues, including governance arrangements which are designed to bind our respective
boards together.

s We will work collectively with our stakeholders, including politicians, to invite agreement from
them to the case for change, the clinically —led model and the principles for decision making.

§ We recognise that we will need to find ways that can meet our programme objectives within
current levels of overall expenditure. We cannot add costs, instead we need to redistribute
resources to achieve a better overall outcome for the populations we serve.

s We will ensure that we develop a shared financial model so that any plans or changes can be
assessed on whether they deliver authentic economic benefit i.e. we will not plan to deliver
savings in one part of our system if the inevitable consequence is (unplanned) cost increases in
another.

s We will develop ways to share the financial risk when implementing major change...we
recognise that national payment formulae may not support what we are agreeing to do and
we will adjust for that where appropriate.

§ We will share all information necessary to allow the Programme to deliver our objectives and
will do so in line with the laws and guidance on Information Governance.

§ We will share organisational plans and be transparent re budgets.

s We will deliver our individual contributions to the work of the Programme to the highest
quality possible and on-time.

§ We will all use a single version of documents pertaining to the Programme and these will be
prepared for us by the Programme Office. We will coordinate consideration of key documents
so that we avoid the issues (of fact and perception) that can arise when key considerations or
decisions are taken sequentially rather than simultaneously.

s We will work together to ensure that public and patient engagement in our Programme is
extensive, timely and meaningful and that we engage in the formulation of options as well as
in response to recommendations on them - we want this Programme to be characterised by
co-production with patients and public.

§ The response to Call to Action told us that the public, whilst wanting full engagement at all
stages and no predetermination of outcomes, want and respect clinically-led development of
strategies and options. We will ensure that this happens.

§ Whilst partnership and collective working on the Programme is essential, so too at times will
be the need for organisations to pursue their own objectives (e.g. in relation to competition
amongst service providers). Where this is felt by any constituent to be the case, then we agree
to making that explicit to our partners, to explain our position, and to work with the
Programme to enable continued collective decision making to continue.

§ The response to the Call to Action asked us to avoid being constrained by history, habit and
politics and to look to do ‘the right thing’. We will explain any decisions we make clearly and in
that light.

§ Being part of the CSR Programme represents a clear commitment, and we will take collective
responsibility for making progress towards a shared vision for improved services and health.

Page 18



uturefi Agenda i
f t ire t
Shaping healthcare together

Clinical Design Workstream

A Report of Output
November 2013 -March 2014

Page 19



futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

A N oe

Contents

Introduction
Scope of the clinical design workstream
Process
The Case for Change
4.1 Background
4.2 The Challenges

4.2.1 Changes in our population profile
4.2.2 Changing patterns of illness
4.2.3 Higher expectations

4.2 .4 Clinical standards and developments in medical technology

4.2.5 Economic challenges

4.2.6 Opportunity costs in quality of service

4.2.7 Impact on accessing services for populations living in two urban
centres and much more sparsely populated rural communities

5. Acute and Episodic care

5.1 Key principles

5.1.1 Care closer to home

5.1.2 Needs led services

5.1.3 Integrated care

5.1.4 Care by experts

5.1.5 Consistent & consolidated services

5.1.6 Sustainable systems

5.2 Model of care

5.2.1 Patient flows

5.2.2 One emergency centre
5.2.3 ‘Some’ urgent care centres
5.2.4 Partnership care

5.2.5 Professional navigation

5.2.6 Integrated community care

5.3 Diagram of model of care

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design wOrkstreaPa@et A@hrch 2014 v4



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

6. Long Term Conditions and Frailty
6.1 Key principles
6.1.1 Enabling patient responsibility
6.1.2 Partnership care
6.1.3 Shifting care into the community
6.1.4 From reactive to proactive care
6.1.9 Timely response, enhanced recovery & rapid reablement
6.1.10The last year of life
6.2 Model of care
6.2.1 Prevention
6.2.2 Partnership care
6.2.3 Self management & care planning
6.2.4 Integrated teams
6.2.5 Increased levels of care
6.2.6 Reablement and rehabilitation
6.3 Diagram of model of care
7. Planned Care
7.1Key principles
7.1.1 Patient empowerment & navigation
7.1.2 Pathways
7.1.3 Partnership care
7.1.4 Levels of care
7.2 Model of care
7.2.1 Patient portal
7.2.2 Pathways
7.2.3 Navigation
7.2.4 Levels of care
7.3 Diagram of model of care
8. Cross cutting themes
9. Whole system synergies

10. Next steps

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream Féagel\@rlh 2014 V4



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

1. Introduction

The Clinical Design workstream was established in November 2013 and used the
results from the patients’ and clinicians’ Call to Action survey and meetings as a
starting point for its work. From this, it has established an approach to ensure that
the future of hospital and community services is considered within the context of the
whole system. It has embedded a process which maximises patient and clinician
engagement and co-creation, and agreed that there is a compelling case for change.
It has also considered the clinical and design principles applicable to the whole
system and key components within it, examined the national and international
evidence base and formulated high level models of care across the whole system
which have undergone some initial testing.

The output up to this point, together with a summary of next steps, is described fully
in the following report.

2. Scope of the Clinical Design workstream

The design of high quality, safe, efficient and sustainable hospital services must be
done within the context of a coherent and deliverable whole system plan. So,
although the scope of the FutureFit programme is confined to the future of acute
and community hospital services, the clinical design work stream is required to
consider the health and social economy as a whole and establish models of care
which fully integrate all services within it. The success of FutureFit is likely to depend
on achieving whole system transformational change. This has significant implications
for commissioners as well as the organisations, services and workforce that currently
lie beyond the scope of this programme.

3. Process

Following the Call to Action surveys and events, a Clinical Reference Group
comprising 50 senior clinicians from health and social care, along with patient
representatives, met on November 20" 2013 to receive the results, from which a
case for change was established and whole system design principles were debated
and agreed.

The Clinical Reference Group met again on January 29" 2014, during which it
confirmed the output from the first meeting, suggested what success would look like
and how to measure it and discussed the clinical and design principles applicable to
the three main areas of health care delivery:

e Acute and Episodic Care;
e Long Term Conditions / Frailty, and;
e Planned Care.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design wOrkstreaPa@et ANParch 2014 v4 4



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

Three subgroups were formed to consider these areas further; each subgroup
comprising approximately 30 clinicians from health and social care along with patient
representatives. They each met for six hours during February 2014 to add more
detail to the design and clinical principles, to establish high level models of care in
each area and to begin a process of sense checking, testing and refinement of the
models.

The core Clinical Design workstream, reporting to the Programme Team, has planned
and overseen this process and will remain responsible for the next steps described at
the conclusion of this report.

4. The Case for Change

4.1 Background

There are already some very good health services in Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin. They
have developed over many years to try to best meet the needs and expectations of the
populations served, including that of Mid-Wales. Nevertheless, when we look at the
changing needs of the population now and that forecast for the coming years; when we
look at the quality standards that we should aspire to for our population, as medicine
becomes ever more sophisticated; and when we look at the economic environment that
the NHS must live within; then it becomes obvious that the time has come to look again
at how we design services so we can meet the needs of our population and provide
excellent healthcare services for the next 20 years.

When considering the pattern of services currently provided, our local clinicians and
indeed many of those members of the public who have responded to the recent Call to
Action consultation, accept that there is a case for making significant change provided
there is no predetermination and that there is full engagement in thinking through the
options. They see the opportunity for:

e Better clinical outcomes through bringing specialists together, treating a higher
volume of cases routinely so as to maintain and grow skills

e Reduced morbidity and mortality through ensuring a greater degree of consultant-
delivered clinical decision-making more hours of the day and more days of the week
through bringing teams together to spread the load

e A pattern of services that by better meeting population needs, by delivering quality
comparable with the best anywhere, by working through resilient clinical teams, can
become highly attractive to the best workforce and can allow the rebuilding of staff
morale

e Better adjacencies between services through redesign and bringing them together

e Improved environments for care

e A better match between need and levels of care through a systematic shift towards
greater care in the community and in the home

e A reduced dependence on hospitals as a fall-back for inadequate provision elsewhere
and instead hospitals doing to the highest standards what they are really there to do
(higher dependency care and technological care)

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream Féagelvg& 2014 V4 5



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

e A far more coordinated and integrated pattern of care, across the NHS and across
other sectors such as social care and the voluntary sector, with reduced duplication
and better placing of the patient at the centre of care

They see the need and the potential to do this in ways which recognise absolutely the

differing needs and issues facing our most dispersed rural populations and our urban

populations too.

This then is the positive case for change - the opportunity to improve the quality of care
we provide to our changing population.

4.2 The Challenges

Our local clinicians and respondents to the Call to Action also see this opportunity to
systematically improve care as being a necessary response to how we address the many
challenges faced by the service as it moves forward into the second and third decades of
the 21% century.

These challenges are set out below - they are largely outside our control and we have to
adapt our services to meet them:

4.2.1 Changes in our population profile

The remarkable and welcome improvement in the life expectancy of older people that
has been experienced across the UK in recent years is particularly pronounced in
Shropshire where the population over 65 has increased by 25% in just 10 years. This
growth is forecast to continue over the next decade and more. As a result the pattern of
demand for services has shifted with greater need for the type of services that can
support frailer people, often with multiple long-term conditions, to continue to live with
dignity and independence at home and in the community.

4.2.2 Changing patterns of illness

Long-term conditions are on the rise as well, due to changing lifestyles. The means we
need to move the emphasis away from services that support short-term, episodic illness
and infections towards services that support earlier interventions to improve health and
deliver sustained continuing support, again in the community.

4.2.3 Higher expectations

Quite rightly, the population demands the highest quality of care and also a greater
convenience of care, designed around the realities of their daily lives. For both reasons,
there is a push towards 7-day provision or extended hours of some services, and both of
these require a redesign of how we work given the inevitability of resource constraints.

4.2.4 Clinical standards and developments in medical technology

Specialisation in medical and other clinical training has brought with it significant
advances as medical technology and capability have increased over the years. But it also
brings challenges. It is no longer acceptable nor possible to staff services with generalists
or juniors and the evidence shows, that for particularly serious conditions, to do so risks
poorer outcomes. Staff are, of course, aware of this. If they are working in services that,
for whatever reason, cannot meet accepted professional standards, morale falls and staff
may seek to move somewhere that can offer these standards. It is also far more difficult

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design wOrkstreaPaget AMdbrch 2014 v4 6



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

to attract new staff to work in such a service. Clinicians are a scarce and valuable
resource. We must seek to deploy them to greatest effect.

4.2.5 Economic challenges

The NHS budget has grown year on year for the first 60 years of its life ......in one decade
across the turn of the 21st century its budget doubled in real terms. But now the world
economy, and the UK economy within that, is in a different place. The NHS will at best
have a static budget going forward. And yet the changing patterns of population and
resultant need, the increasing costs of ever improving medical technology, the difficulties
in simply driving constant productivity improvements in a service that is 75% staff costs
and that works to deliver care to people through people, mean that without changing the
basic pattern of services then costs will rapidly outstrip available resources and services
will face the chaos that always arises from deficit crises.

4.2.6 Opportunity costs in quality of service

In Shropshire and Telford and Wrekin the inherited pattern of services, especially hospital
services, across multiple sites means that services are struggling to avoid fragmentation
and are incurring additional costs of duplication and additional pressures in funding. The
clinical and financial sustainability of acute hospital services has been a concern for more
than a decade. Shropshire has a large enough population to support a full range of acute
general hospital services, but splitting these services over two sites is increasingly difficult
to maintain without compromising the quality and safety of the service.

Most pressingly, the Acute Trust currently runs two full A&E departments and does not
have a consultant delivered service 16 hours/day 7 days a week. Even without achieving
Royal College standards the Trust currently has particular medical workforce recruitment
issues around A&E services, stroke, critical care and anaesthetic cover. All of these
services are currently delivered on two sites though stroke services have recently been
brought together on an interim basis. This latter move has delivered measurable
improvements in clinical outcomes.

4.2.7 Impact on accessing services for populations living in two urban centres and much
more sparsely populated rural communities

In Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin there are distinctive populations. Particular factors
include our responsibility for meeting the health needs of sparsely populated rural areas
in the county, and that services provided in our geography can also be essential to people
in parts of Wales. Improved and timely access to services is a very real issue and one
which the public sees as a high priority. We have a network of provision across
Community Hospitals that can be part of the redesign of services to increase local care.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream Féagelvg& 2014 V4 7



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

5. Acute and Episodic Care
5.1 Key Principles

5.1.1 Care close to home

An enhanced and integrated education and prevention programme, driven by a
commitment to wellbeing as a primary health, social, economic, political and cultural
aim, without which the sustainability and quality of services in the future will be
seriously threatened. This is discussed further in the LTC section.

Easy access to understandable and trustworthy information about self care options
and local services, combined with clear signposting to points of access appropriate
for the level of urgent or emergency care required.

A single point of access for professionals to navigate patients to a wider range of
integrated and community based services.

Urgent (not emergency) care delivered by expert community generalists as a default,
with prompt access to specialist advice and opinion when required.

5.12 A needs led service

Patient access to urgent and emergency care should be dependant on the level of
care they require. Quality, safety and achieving the best outcomes will come before
choice. Services will be rationalised so they are more consistent in their quality and
the services they offer. This will make it easier to effectively triage, signpost and
brand to ensure more appropriate attendances at the right point of care, which
should be the least intensive level required to fully meet every patient’s needs in
order to maximise efficiency and reduce iatrogenic harm.

5.1.3 Integrated care

Integrated care records are a necessary component of an integrated health and
social care system and their development should be of the highest priority. Patients
regard them as a reasonable proxy for continuity of care.

Agreed pathways of care should run seamlessly across the whole system and span
whole patient journeys. They should be consistent across all localities, 7 days a week.
Local variation due to rurality should not obstruct integration.

There should be smooth transitions between levels of care. Providers should define
their transitions as carefully as their core business.

Holistic assessments should be the default in all care settings.
5.1.4 Care by experts

An early expert opinion should be available from senior clinicians in all settings. A
principle of right care first time: ‘triage — diagnose — treat / palliate’ should be the
default.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design wOrkstreaPaget A@prch 2014 V4 8



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

An education, training and workforce review will be required and new roles
developed in order to provide expert opinions in all settings 7 days a week.

5.1.5 Consistent and consolidated services

A single high acuity emergency centre, providing expert specialist and generalist led
services, will provide multiple clinical benefits. It will consolidate resources, improve
teamwork and integration, improve quality and safety, allow more effective
generalist support in lower acuity settings and provide an economy of scale and high
volumes of care to maximise expertise and improve outcomes.

‘Some’ community based urgent care centres, staffed by expert generalists with easy
access to specialist support, will provide services closer to home but at a sufficient
scale to ensure consistent, effective and sustainable ‘modular’ services.

5.1.6 Sustainable systems
The ‘critical mass’ of urgent and emergency care delivered by one emergency centre
and ‘some’ urgent care centres will enhance recruitment and retention of staff.

Continuous monitoring and learning should be embedded to allow service evolution
and improvements and to develop predictive forward planning.

Commitment to this model of care should be long term.
5.2 Model of Care for Acute and Episodic Care

5.2.1 Patient Flows

An internet ‘patient portal’, available on all platforms, will provide easy, trustworthy
and localised information regarding self help, advice and signposting. This will
include and integrate health, social and voluntary sector information.

A ‘Smart’ Single point of telephone access (111) will intelligently triage all requests
for urgent care (defined as requests for same day assessment) and signpost patients
to the right point of care, including the capacity to make appointments at their GP
practice if less urgent, or at one of the urgent care centres. This service will be linked
to a live demand and capacity management system to improve patient flow.

As a default, LTC urgent care should be ‘planned’ as active case management will
detect exacerbation at an early stage.

There will be increased signposting to local pharmacies for low level urgent care
advice and treatment. Pharmacies will ‘cluster’ with GP practices and develop closer
working relationships.

5.2.2 One Emergency Centre

A single, fully equipped and staffed high acuity emergency centre with consolidated
technical and professional resources delivering high quality emergency medical care
24hrs 7 days a week. A combination of expert generalists (Acute physicians, COE
consultants and new roles etc) and specialists (ED consultants and specialists) will
provide early expert opinions at all times. It will serve as a trauma centre with a co-

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream Féagelvgr?h 2014 V4 9



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

located critical care unit. Other adjacencies include facilities for ambulatory care and
assessment units with multi-disciplinary teams (including mental health) specifically
dealing with patients suitable for 0 day length of stay (LOS) pathways (ambulatory
care) and <3 day length of stay (LTC and frailty syndromes). There will be also be full
and immediately accessible diagnostic facilities, blood bank and pharmacy.

Access will be via 999 ambulance or co-located urgent care centre.

A single emergency centre will improve safety and quality of care and focus
resources to improve teamwork. Integration and consolidation of the workforce will
promote better working practices both within the unit and in providing support to
generalists in lower acuity settings. Improved trust and relationships across different
care settings will be embedded through partnership care and rotating / posts, some
in new roles designed to promote integrated care and whole system pathways.

5.2.3 ‘Some’ Urgent Care Centres

Multiple units provided at ‘cluster’ GP practice level of ‘modular’ and consistent
design to provide low and medium levels of urgent medical and care input. Some
diagnostic facilities and a pharmacy will be available on site. Co-located with a range
of mental health, community and voluntary sector services, GP Out of Hours, and in
some centres medium acuity beds. Timely expert generalist opinion available 7 days.
One Urgent Care Centre (UCC) will be co-located with the Emergency Centre and
receive all the ‘walk in’ patients who will not be able to access the Emergency Centre
unless transferred by a clinician from the UCC. Urgent Care Centres will be staffed by
a combination of advanced practitioners and GPs from the ‘cluster’ of practices
surrounding it. From a GP practice perspective, urgent care will be provided at
cluster level, whilst LTC management and other non urgent work will remain at
practice level. Continuity of care at urgent care centres will be achieved through
integrated care records, whilst continuity of care for patients with LTCs will be
through a named clinician or keyworker (in addition to integrated care records).

5.2.4 Partnership Care

Specialist support will be easily and quickly available to support generalists in lower
acuity care settings, including urgent care centres. This will be in the context of the
development of partnership care across all care settings with a re-definition of
generalist and specialist roles to include a greater teaching and learning component
to increase generic skills and improve the consistency of care. Communication
between professionals will be frequent and direct (not via a third party) which will
improve working relationships, feedback and learning. This model is described in
more detail in the LTC section.

5.2.5 Professional Navigation

There will be a single point of access (SPA) for professionals to arrange further care
and support for patients following their urgent or emergency care contact. This SPA
will act as a portal to a wide range of community based integrated care options. For
complex care issues, the SPA will initiate contact but care planning will then be
finalised through direct conversation between professionals. For simple care issues,

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design wOrkstreaPaget 2A&rch 2014 v4 10



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

a ‘handover’ will be managed through the SPA service with integrated care records
serving as a valid proxy for continuity of care.

5.2.6 Integrated Community Care

Urgent and emergency care will be delivered in the context of whole system
integration. Services will be provided by teams around the patient, not by a series of
independent professionals working within their own organisations and professional
boundaries. Community capacity will be built to keep people at home and out of
hospital, deliver reablement in the community, enhance the role and involvement of
primary care and consistently deliver the right care in the right place by the right
staff. Access to these services will be available from all points of patient contact via
the SPA. This is further discussed in the LTC section.

5.3 Diagrams of the Acute and Episodic model of care

* Advice
* Self Help
* Signposting

Primary Care INTEGRATED
CARE
‘Some’
U tC Increased
< s community
Centres options and
capacity

One
Emergency
Centre

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream Féagelvg@n 2014 V4 11



sansouseiq

ale)
[ean3LID

syun
JUSLLISSISSY

aljua)
Aousdiswigy

saljjenads

uum mco»

Jale) sonsouseig
[eros

EERITVETS
Aunwwo)
ENUED)
a1e) Aewn ;
% 81e) 1d 101935 dyesy saidesay | HED

Aueunjop BUEIN wasin

/SJJ[N SWOS,

L
futurefit
Shaping healthcare together

12

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design wOrkstreaﬁaget 3@hrch 2014 v4



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

6. Long Term Conditions and Frailty
6.1 Key Principles

6.1.1 Enable patient responsibility for prevention, self care, maintenance and
accessing appropriate care

Enabling patient responsibility should be embedded in all models of care. Although

there is mixed evidence of short term impact on admissions and cost, there is an

overwhelming case for empowering citizens and communities to be co-responsible

for managing their lives and social environment, whatever their health status.

Many long term conditions are preventable and systematic secondary prevention
shows improved outcomes. The medium and long term potential for reduction in
health and social care demand is great.

Targeted prevention activities in social care have demonstrated impact although
there is currently no statutory obligation for Local Authorities to invest in
prevention.

Public Health and all other stakeholders must be involved and particular focus is
required for hard to reach groups. The prevention agenda should form part of the
school curriculum.

Behaviour change, education and support will often be more effective and
sustainable if delivered by peers rather than professionals.

Self management of Long Term Conditions is at an early stage of development with
little hard evidence as yet to support significant investment. It is the view of the
clinicians locally however that it is aligned with the principles of citizen
empowerment and community mobilisation as well as the emergence of assistive
technology, self care should be a central component of LTC management.

People with co-morbidities and who are frail have less capacity for self management
and require a different approach, especially when they are ill. Frailty syndromes are
now recognised as an independent risk of worse outcomes and do not fit well into
pathway driven care which the patient can be co-responsible for. They require a
named key worker or responsible clinician with whom they can share decisions and
who can act as their advocate. This is also the case for other vulnerable groups such
as people with learning difficulties.

6.1.2 Generalist care as a default, with partnership care between generalists and
specialists and clearly defined indications for specialist care
Generalists perform holistic assessments as a default and should be available in all
care settings. Workforce planning and redesign will increase the number of
generalists, many of whom will also develop specialist skills. This includes GPs,
community health professionals and acute care clinicians. They will be responsible
for initial assessment as well as the co-ordination and continuity of care for the
majority of patients.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream FéagelvBrlh 2014 V4 13



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

Specialists will offer timely response to support generalist care. They will assume
greater responsibility for education and learning to improve the generic skills of
generalists in all care settings. They will continue to be responsible for the care of
the most complex patients.

Partnership care between generalists and specialists will become the norm with a
more dynamic and greater range of options to share the care of patients through
meaningful and direct conversation, interaction and information flow. This will allow
the care of a greater proportion of patients to be managed by generalists in a
community setting with targeted specialist input when required. Resources must
shift to support this.

Partnership care will be developed across the whole health and social economy. The
integrated health and social care of a patient will be provided ‘in parallel’ (not ‘in
series’ as is currently the case) with shared risk management.

Better relationships will allow ‘honest feedback’ and more effective mutual and case
based learning.

Age transitions, especially in mental health and paediatric care are currently a
problem which will be resolved when continuity of care is managed by a community
generalist working across all age groups.

Integrated care records are a key requirement for partnership care.

6.1.3 Provide a better match between needs and levels of care through a
systematic shift towards greater care in the community

People prefer to be cared for in their own home whenever possible, even when they

are ill.

Too much care is currently provided at levels of care which are higher than patients
require to meet their needs. This is not only resource inefficient, but also increases
the risk of iatrogenic harm. Up to 30% (?) of people admitted to acute hospitals
could be managed safely and effectively in a different care setting and at a lower
level of care.

Patients cared for at home remain connected to their family and carers. Community
support remains continuous and the patient is less likely to ‘decompensate’ by being
cared for in a bed based acute environment which is also much more stressful.
Individualised care can be delivered more easily by integrated teams. The potentially
difficult and harmful transitions from home to hospital and back again are removed.
Performing an accurate and holistic assessment of needs is much more difficult
when a patient is not in their usual living environment.

Home will not be the right place to care for everyone who is ill. Some of course
require high levels of care in an acute hospital bed, but other alternatives must be
provided that offer a ‘medium’ level of care.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design wOrkstreaPaget S%rch 2014 v4 14



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

Community capacity must be built to accommodate this shift. The required shift in
resources to achieve this poses a challenge. It is not necessarily cheaper to provide
care at home when intensive input is required.

6.1.4 Move from reactive to proactive care, including risk stratification, care
planning, early detection and intervention and ‘planned’ urgent care
The evidence base supports the provision of proactive care for a number of specific
conditions but does not yet show improved outcomes for people with multiple co-
morbidities and frailty. Nevertheless, the new GP contract and local clinician
consensus both support a move to providing more proactive care. Clinical experience
strongly suggests that it reduces the number and severity of crises and gives
reassurance to patients, families and carers that they know what to do and who to
contact in the early stages of exacerbation.

There is uncertainty about what percentage of the ‘at risk’ population would benefit
from active case management. It is important not to shift resources into ineffective
interventions and targeted proactive care will remain preferable until the evidence
base is clearer.

6.1.5 Provide timely response to exacerbation and ensure enhanced recovery and
rapid reablement with a minimum time spent in acute care settings

Integrated multi-disciplinary teams are needed to address all the issues, both in

community and acute settings and care must remain joined up at all times.

An exacerbation related to an existing LTC should not require admission, but may
require diagnostics.

Once in hospital, the LTC tends to be ignored in preference to the exacerbation and
the patient has an ‘asymmetric’ experience of their assessment and care because of
this. Holistic assessment as a default will address this.

Discharge planning must start at the time of admission, and patients think this
should be done by the ward staff caring for them, not a separate team. Provide
Estimated Dates of Discharge for all patients soon after admission.

Standardise simple discharge processes and provide bespoke planning for complex
discharges.

Employ strategic operational planning to maximise 0 day length of stay (ambulatory
care and <3 day length of stay (frailty teams) in acute settings.

‘Discharge to assess' as default once medical condition stabilised. Reablement at
home where possible and in community setting if not. Aim to return patient to
original level of care.

Resolve governance issues around free NHS and assessed social care which currently
inhibit integrated care.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream FéagelvB& 2014 V4 15



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

6.1.6 Diagnose and plan the last year of life and stop sending people to hospital
to die.

Once fully embedded, End of Life (EOL) care will become part of ‘the day job’ but this

will require care co-ordination and equity of care for all terminal conditions. EOL

care is currently unstructured and patchily commissioned. To improve this, a

consolidated EOL package will provide better care and reduce costs. A roving

palliative care team would be effective and cost efficient.

6.2 Model of Care for LTC

6.2.1 Prevention
An economy wide prevention strategy driven by a commitment to wellbeing as a
primary health, social, economic, political and cultural aim.

Targeted primary prevention across all health and social care settings employing
‘make very contact count’ and upskilling the workforce in behavioural and
motivational change techniques.

Systematic secondary prevention.

6.2.2 Partnership Care
Primary care generalists (mainly GPs) retain continuing responsibility for care and co-
ordination with rapid access to specialist support as required.

A menu of options to facilitate timely and personal communication between
generalist and specialist to share decisions and improve care planning for patients at
all levels of acuity: routine, urgent, emergency and end of life.

Clinical conversations, mutual learning and honest feedback will improve working
relationships and the quality of care.

Direct access for generalists to pathway driven diagnostics to reduce unnecessary
secondary care referrals.

Specialists will continue to manage and be responsible for the continuing care of a
smaller number of the most complex patients, but with a greater responsibility for
education and upskilling the generalist workforce.

6.2.3 Self Management and Care Planning
Upscale self management programmes and combine with care planning as a routine
for anyone with an LTC.

Active case management for those at high risk, targeted initially to those conditions
where benefit is evidenced.

Upscale peer and community support programmes

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design wOrkstreaPaget Svbrch 2014 v4

16



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

6.2.4 Integrated teams
Integrated multi-disciplinary teams providing case management, timely response to
exacerbation and facilitating discharge.

Strong links with primary care, ‘teams around the practice’ aligned with ‘teams
around the patient’.

Specialist skills linked to and augmented by integration with acute care specialists.

Sustainability achieved through generic upskilling across professional boundaries,
using individual specialist skills as the teaching resource.

Embed continuous learning and review within the teams to ensure maximum effect
from integration

6.2.5 Increased Levels of Care
Timely and appropriate response to exacerbation through a ‘tiered’ increase in level
of care:

e Low medical input provided by a ‘hospital at home service’ for minor
exacerbations where short term additional care and rehabilitation at home
allows the patient to continue living independently. With effective case
management and early detection of exacerbation, this level of care will be
appropriate for an increasing proportion of people with LTC exacerbations.

e Medium medical input provided in a community setting, but not in the
patient’s home. ‘Step up’ higher intensity care and rehabilitation can be
combined with more frequent and expert medical input to hasten recovery
with the aim of returning to the original level of care. Integration of care in
these settings with care provided in acute settings will improve quality and
flow.

e High medical input provided in a single high acuity unit with a consolidated
and integrated workforce as described in the key principles.

6.2.6 Reablement and rehabilitation
Discharge to assess as the default from acute care settings.

Reablement at home as the preferred option with the aim of a rapid return to the
original level of care and the withdrawal of additional care and support.

Reablement in a community setting but not at home for those patients with slow to
resolve exacerbations, people who will not return to their original level of care,
including those awaiting care home placements. Aligned with ‘step up’ processes, an
EDD and discharge planning will be standard for ‘step down’, using the same or
similar criteria to those employed in acute care settings.

Identify and fill gaps e.g. neuro rehabilitation.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream FéagelvB& 2014 V4

17



£

futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

6.3 Diagram of the Long Term Conditions model of care

—

. 8s ) diysisuped

4

JjeANINg

Suyysdn pue
uoneInps uo sseydiug  «
Junmy=s Apnoe Jamoy
rl.ﬂnuﬂ.-_u.-ﬂ_n. lﬂm .
SLEE3L

menads pageiBaon .
ST BUD WO IXHBYRION
pEjEIIEIU0]

auie) 1sjjepads

BIED JO

paanbas

24E] [E1205 PUS YIESH
Bunwes) eraniy »
TUSITOSR PRIEYT «
MOIIETUNAULICD L2200 »

uaym poddns 1sEDads
%&Hrﬂ rrl.l

-

e

/z -
Rt
// x\\\\

UOREUIPIO-00 BB AJUNUWLAUOT o
el jo Aununucy e
Aupsuodsad usned Bununucy o«

TUSLUSESSE MISHOH  »

BIDYRITNE

Anununuod pue fdewnlyd e

aJe) 1sl|eiauan

7

-

puooas 308D pagedagy| -
Fjqsuodsa

(L=

_uml.ll____j—albﬂw.. -
wawaleus 435 .

uonalep ANE3 e
vonuassud pareiie] .

217 Yum Juaned

APUnURLUDD FqeUIRlSNS  ®

jusjed punoJe wea) e
ndur 3423

Y&y Ing Jndul [EDIpSL MO .

WOEqQIR0ENE AUNTE MO e

Aoy je jepdsoy, e

AT [EIPaIA o

ale)
JO s|ana] pasealou|

a.e) Jo |3poy

suopilpuo) wiaj suol

¢paanbay

3UED 10 [BAS] J3YSIY WBUBWISS e

IpaN0S3 30 0] 53NS51 [BROS -
813 [euoippe Buinbal

uONeqia0exa BUNOS3Y e
Buwueyd adeyosip

puUE O3 pRlBWIpUO-0D

Jumopdals, =

UDIIEHIGEY SAISUSIU| -

APuUnuuLUod Ul JUSILE|gESY

ued 2ued psqepdn -

2UED Y0 [BAS] BUBUO DUy e
iuondo ue T2 Ayoe Auunuwuwod

Ul US| qesl Aclenguly e

IUBLUSAPOAL 101095 AlElUmNOs, e

SISHIOM IUSUSC) &

sweslpatesssqy e

S0 18 Waa[geay

Juswajqeay

18

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design wOrkstreaﬁaget S@rch 2014 v4



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

7. Planned Care

For the purposes of this report, planned care is defined as care that is non urgent
and accessed either directly by the patient or through referral from a generalist to a
specialist. LTC management includes much planned care and some urgent care is
‘planned’ if it is referred to a next day clinic.

7.1 Key Principles

7.1.1 Patient empowerment and navigation

The current planned care system is complex, fragmented and difficult to navigate. It
disempowers and frustrates patients who then seek professional help to signpost
and navigate when this should not be necessary. The initial referral has benefitted
from the Referral Assessment Service (RAS) and the Telford Referral and Quality
Service (TRAQS) but their roles do not extend beyond making the first appointment.

Patients want easy access to understandable and trustworthy information about self
care options and local services to which they can gain direct access, as well as to
information that guides them to seek professional help when necessary.

Patients find it understandably hard to distinguish ‘want’ from ‘need’ and, although
clear information will resolve some of this, they often require professional expertise
to distinguish between the two.

Once referred, patients want clear information about what is going to happen next
and the timescale they should expect.

Navigation through the planned care system should be patient focused and facilitate
self navigation wherever possible

Professional or peer advocacy to assist in navigation should be the exception rather
than the rule.

Some patient groups (e.g. people with learning disabilities) should be offered pro-
active advocacy.

7.1.2 Pathways
Planned care should be largely pathway driven, with as few stages as possible to
minimise error and delay.

Pathways will vary in type and complexity depending on the degree of diagnostic
uncertainty and treatment options. Patients should be able to gain access to the
simplest ‘out of hospital’ and diagnostic pathways without the need for a
professional referral, whilst the most complex will require expert specialist decision
making at an early stage because of diagnostic uncertainty.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream FéagelvBrI’h 2014 V4 19



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

7.1.3 Partnership care

Aligned with the principles described in acute and LTC care, a richer and more
dynamic conversation between referring generalist and specialist will result in higher
quality referrals, better outcomes and mutual learning.

7.1.4 Levels of care

In planned care, this is about ‘who does what where?’ There is a compelling
evidence base for a tiered arrangement of treatment centres, with the most complex
and risky surgery being performed in a site co-located with a critical care unit, but
the majority not requiring this. Separate treatment centres for routine surgery can
also benefit from being designed and delivered through a different business model.

There is a ‘critical mass’ issue to consider when planning the number of treatment
centres. For minor surgery, this is less of an issue, although the skill of the operator
still influences the outcome, whereas for intermediate treatment centres outcomes
are influenced by volumes — the larger the number, generally the better the result.

7.2 Model of care

7.2.1 Patient portal

Facilitated self management through a web based patient portal which provides
trustworthy localised information about common conditions, when to seek
professional help, options for self management and direct access to simple therapies
and diagnostics

7.2.2 Pathways
Systematic design, approval and implementation of whole system pathways driving
the majority of planned care. A tiered model:

e patient self referral and self management

e diagnosis or symptom complex known with direct GP / generalist access to
the pathway

e diagnosis or symptom complex unknown requiring expert specialist decision
making early in the pathway.

Reduce stages in all pathways to improve quality and safety and reduce errors.
‘Optimise’ patients prior to referral as a routine. Referral made by most appropriate
professional (e.g. could be physio for arthroplasty). Patient choice expressed at time
of referral assisted by navigator and / or Patient Recorded Outcome Measures
(PROMS) data. Eliminate duplicated diagnostics. Provide expert opinion at first out
patient appointment, preferably from the surgeon who will be performing the
procedure. Date of surgery agreed immediately after first out patient appointment.
Single multi-disciplinary pre-op assessment to include anaesthetist, physio and social
worker. Admit on day of surgery. Enhanced recovery with the shortest possible LOS.
Out patient follow up in the community as appropriate.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design wOrkstreaPaget Srch 2014 va

20



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

7.2.3 Navigation

A simpler planned care system requires less navigation. Patients should have access
to updated information about their stage of the planned care journey and be able to
self navigate as a default. Some advocacy will be required which the RAS and TRACS
teams may be able to provide. In more complex and serious situations, or when a
patient has special needs, then a navigator / advocate will be required. This could be

a peer group volunteer, specialist nurse, therapist, GP or other professional.

7.2.4 Levels of Care
Three tiers of treatment:

Low professional input. Multiple centres for day case / minors, basic
diagnostics and access to therapies

Medium professional input. One or two centres for intermediates / day case.
Beds available for low / medium risk orthopaedics. May or may not be co-
located with high input centre. Advanced diagnostics (USS/CT/MRI/Nuclear
etc)

High professional input. One centre for majors, co-located but operating
separately from single emergency centre. Co-located HDU. Advanced
diagnostics. Potential for repatriation of elements, at least, of out of area
specialist surgery (e.g. cardiac, neuro). Whilst it is appropriate that some
work goes to specialist tertiary centres, there is opportunity to develop
shared care models in which a concentrated local centre might provide pre-
and post-operative care.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream Féagew@@n 2014 V4

21



futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

7.3 Diagram of Planned Care model of care.

I

‘ounau ‘oelpJied Joj BAJE JO 1IN0 m.ﬂhﬁ&

(0312 JeapPNN/IYIN/LD/SSN) sonsouselq .

NAaH -«

(ea1us0 AousSisws woyy ajesedss Inq
Y1IM pa1e00J-02) siofew Joj a11usd auQ
INdU[ [eUOISS3}01d YBIH

(19 Je3pPNN/IYIN/LD/SSN) sonsouselq «
(243u20 Indul YSiy Yum pa1e20j-00 aq
jou Aew Jo Aew) aseo Aep /saieipauliaiul
JO} S2J1U0 |EI0| OM] JO BUQD

jndu| |euoissajoid WNIPalN

saidesayy 01 ssa00y

(ssn/Aeix) sonsouselp oiseg .
sioujw/ased Aep 1o} sanua0 9|dijnAl
indu| [eUOISS3j01d MOT

2Jed J|9s papIinD .
djeH J3S

K

azIs 1un
XIW [|I4S

umouy| sisouseiq

S$S300V 103dId
Q3NYO4NI

O e

1sidesayl .

asinp 1sijepads .
ISIOM 1334 .
uaned .

b

sdnou8
AJeyunjop -

syuaned
yadx3y -

aUPIPaN
jo de/1l «

;uawaSeuew
Jos
pajej|iey |

22

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstredﬁ%a@et%rch 2014 V4



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

8. Cross Cutting Themes

A number of important cross cutting themes have emerged in all the clinical
meetings thus far. The following is a summary of discussion from different clinical
meetings.

8.1 Embedding compassion and healthy relationships

Although compassionate care requires the right attitude, this must be translated into
action and supported in system design and team working practices. Every member of
a team must have clearly understood roles and responsibilities, especially when
working within complex systems and environments. However, over-definition of
roles, especially when restricted to one care setting, can prevent professionals ‘going
the extra mile’ to ensure compassionate care and seamless patient journeys.

Named key workers or responsible clinicians will improve co-ordination of care for
vulnerable people.

Values based recruitment will become the norm and compassionate attitudes,
behaviours and relationships will be more visible throughout the whole organisation.

8.2 Rural and Urban solutions

The problems of providing equality of access and quality of care to rural populations
will be partially mitigated by achieving greater care in the community. Care provided
by teams around the patient with home as the default can be provided equitably in
both urban and rural settings. Access to services that require travel clearly require
better transport solutions, but there is also a balance to be achieved between the
advantages of providing truly local services for all levels of care and the better
outcomes and reduced cost of providing care at larger scale in fewer units.

8.3 Workforce issues

Many parts of the health and social care workforce are in crisis. A full workforce
review and plan is required as part of, or alongside the FutureFit programme in order
to resolve this. 7 day working is a requirement across the whole system and brings
additional workforce challenges.

Local clinicians expressed some strong views about potential components of the
solution:

e Consolidate services to make posts more attractive by improving the quality of
work, gaining more experience working in larger units, offering better rotations
through fully staffed co-located departments and services, all in an improved
working environment.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream Féagem&_h 2014 V4

23



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

e Fill medical rotas to fit the available workforce and fill the gaps with new roles
(Advanced practitioner, Emergency Nurse Practitioner, Physicians assistant etc.).

e Prototype and implement rotating (and split) posts through different care
settings to improve mutual learning, understanding and trust, provide better risk
management, encourage better use of shared protocols, pathways, training
opportunities and shared documentation and improve consistency and quality of
care through generic upskilling.

e Improve recruitment and retention of staff through more effective succession
planning and better role development and CPD

e Gain academic status by establishing an economy wide link to university and
other education and training programmes to attract people to come to
Shropshire to train and work.

8.4 Co-ordination, integrated and consistency across the whole system

There is universal agreement that improving the co-ordination, integration and
consistency of care delivered across the whole economy is a necessary precondition
for achieving sustainable improvements in quality and safety. The will to do this is
evident; it is the barriers to it that require systematic identification and removal.
These include a fragmented organisational structure, multiple incompatible IT
systems, ‘old fashioned’ commissioning mechanisms and an overwhelming
administrative burden. Where any pathway components are supplied under the ‘Any
Qualified Provider’ system or through private sector tendering, these will need to be
commissioned in a way which supports improved integration.

‘Siloed’ care does not incentivise clinicians to ‘go the extra mile’, and professionals
are increasingly reluctant to fill gaps in care if it is not within their defined role.
Clinicians should have more control over appointment systems.

8.5 Delivering effective high quality care with no extra money

Financial austerity is one of the key drivers for radical change. There is a need to
move beyond organisational interests so that funding follows the patient.
Pragmatism is required to find the ‘key enablers’ of change to concentrate our
limited resources.

Currently, the status quo is incentivised with the need for organisations to show a
surplus contributing to this.

‘Disruptive’ change is required to overcome the NIMBY (not in my backyard)
problem.

From the clinical perspective, there was a clear case for unifying health and social
care funding and to integrate acute and community care.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstreaﬁagetél@rch 2014 V4 24



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

8.6 Social Care

Health and social care are clearly interdependent and should be designed to reflect
this. There is currently an anomaly which makes closer integration difficult in that
social care is means tested whilst health care is always free. To achieve integrated
working, health and social care should run parallel and share risk, not run in series as
is mostly the case at the moment. No-one enters the social care system without a
health problem and currently both systems focus on those most in need and pay
much less attention to prevention and self care. Although there is no statutory
obligation for Local Authorities to invest in prevention, there was a clear consensus
that health and social care must tackle prevention, education and patient
empowerment to increase self reliance together. The Better Care Fund is a potential
vehicle for this, but concern was expressed that, because its not new money, the
opportunity would be missed.

The financial challenge in social care provision attracted specific comment and some
suggestions to mitigate its effect were made:

e Increase community and carer input

e ensure more patients return to the same rather than a higher level of care
e manage patient and public expectations

e provide more education and information about options

e incorporate the voluntary sector as a core component of care provision

e implement the models of care described in this report which deliver timely
response and intervention, enhanced recovery, early supported discharge and
reablement

8.7 Mental Health

There was unanimous agreement that mental health should be integrated with
primary, community and acute health care. The models of care described in the
three main areas of Acute, LTC and Planned Care were all contributed to by mental
health professionals and further detailing will demonstrate more clearly the
potential for closer integration.

Partnership care in particular was felt to be a model which was equally applicable to
mental health services. Psychological management of all LTCs should be ‘part of the
day job’ and, within the context of partnership care, mental health specialists should
have a greater role in education and upskilling of generalists. Young people have
particularly stressed the need for support for problems with stress and self harm.

The RAID model of liaison in the acute sector was felt to be a good one, but it
needed further development, especially in regard to education and training (the
RAID effect)

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream Féagem& 2014 V4 25



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together
8.8 Children

This area needs further exploration, but initial comments are: there is a lack of
psychological and family support. There are big gaps, such as Autism (now 1:80) and
age transitions. Obesity is not being systematically tackled. GPs and others are
become more and more risk averse around children, Paediatric training for GPs
should be mandatory. Partnership care is an excellent model for Paediatrics.

8.9 Therapeutics

Clinicians recognised that a whole system and strategic approach to therapeutics
was required and that the importance of this was mostly under-estimated.
Community pharmacies are not clustered with GP practices and do not have a
defined working relationship with them. Community pharmacies can take a bigger
role in minor urgent care and also in routine / repeat prescribing. They would need
access to integrated care records to do this. Their impact in minor urgent care would
be increased if some OTC medicines were free to stop unnecessary diversion to GPs.
All pharmacies should have consistent and longer opening hours. In the acute sector,
everyone should have a medication review <24hrs after admission. Evidence that if
they are on 4 or more meds then 2 need changing due to acute presentation. These
reviews should also apply to lower risk groups — often only the highest risk patients
get them. More work with patients at home (e.g. the HARMS scheme) would add
value (hoarding, poor compliance etc). There are too many admissions for technical
therapeutics which could be done at home or in a community setting. There is little
co-ordination of medication across care settings, dressings are a particular example.

9. Whole system synergies

There are a number of key principles and components of models of care which were
repeated in slightly different but synergistic forms across all three care areas:

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstreaﬁa@etélwilarch 2014 V4

26



futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

Aiages jo aoeid |eBarodpaN

Spag YijeaH ey
N SHUN JUBWISSASSY o
*212 ‘oInau Agesy o
“Je1pie) 10j B3R JO INO S[eliajoYe solAep g
e ased Alojejnquiy  «
MO o so1Aep 0
(enuad afieyosip papoddns Ape3 e
Ausdisws woyy ajesedas Ing Yyum SOTwnwxew Aep £/ e
Pa1e20}-02) si0few 10 a13uad 3UQ. anuad Aynoe ydiyaup e
INdU] [eUsISS3j01d YBIH nduf[e3IPa G3TH
épainbal
sapuadelpe anuad 318 JO [9A3] JayBIYy JUsUeWLIRd
i , 8123 ualin |enualod e FPaNj0sal 3q 0] SaNSS! [BDOS e
(M8 PR KIS RN $a1e) [euonippe Suuinbal
1e3aPNN/IYIN/L1D/SSN) sonsoudelQe PRDONE R pie— uoneqiaoexa Suinssy e
$301AU3S AYunuiuo?) . 3
(2nu2> pue ayoy paredowy o Buuued adieyosip
senus) 8183 el indul y3iy yum pa1edoj-0d aq 1ou dnday, e pue a3 paieuipio-0) e
Aew 1o Aew) ased Aep /saieipauiaiul umop dais, e
Auios, uoneqiaoexa Ajnoe wnipay] e / p dals,
10} $313U=J [€20] OM] 10 BUQe [spaq Ayunwiwo? qnH YesH,] uoney|Iqeyal aAIsUIU| e
Indu] [euoIss3j0id WNIp3 INdU| [e3ipay Wnipay Runwiwiod Ul Juswa|qeay
uoddns ueyd aseapajepdn
Ayunwiwod ajqeuieisns e 2182 JO [an3 [euiSuo 03 WIN3Y e
saidesay 03 S5399e juaned punose wea| e ¢uondo ue se Aypey Ajjunwiwod
i) D oK nduj a1ed ul Juawaqeas Alolenquiy e
(Ssn/Aeux) s 1p Jisege 481y Inq Induy [eIPaW MO e JUAWAN0AUL 10035 AJeIunjop e
siouiw/ased uopequalexa Aynde mo] e SIPPOM OUBUAD e
Aep 104 sanuad s|dinNe 2woy je [eydsoy, e swea) pajesdajul o
Indu| [eUoissajoid Mo ndu[ e3P MOT awoy je Juawa|qeay
ale) u_—uOm_.uw 8ied pauue|d J11 40} aie)
pue ayndy al1e)) JO S|aAaT JO S|2A97 pasealdu| jusuwia|gqeay

27

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream Féagelvd@ 2014 V4



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

LTC / Frailty Planned Care
Prevention Make every contact Targeted prevention Information / Self care
count
Whole economy long term strategic prevention programme
I | [] ]
Patient Access to reliable info  Self management. Access to reliable info
Empowerment about signposting Care and EOL plans re self care, local
and self care. with shared decisions.  services and direct access
I | [] [
Advocacy and Integrated care record Key worker Pathway navigation
Continuity
Partnership Timely specialist GP led care with Tiered pathway driven
Care support to generalist specialist support care with GP and specialist
in Urgent Care Centre and education at defined points. Feedback
and education as the norm
I | [] l
Levels of Care One Emergency Centre Low, medium and Low, medium and high
(see diagram)  'Some’ Urgent Care high medical input professional input care
Centres care settings settings for procedures
S N [1 [
Integrated SPA to access integrated Integrated Teams integrated around
Teams community services multi-disciplinary teams service
I | [ 1 [

10. Next Steps

This report details the output of the Clinical Design workstream over the first 3
months of its activity. The models of care are emerging but are still at a high level.

A process of refinement will continue through a number of cycles where they will be
repeatedly tested using patient scenarios, patient characteristics and flow volumes
and financial impact.

A further detailed review of the evidence base around each component of the model
will be undertaken.

External clinical assurance will be sought from an expert clinical team overseen by
the West Midlands Clinical Senate.

Clinical engagement will be deepened, both by continuing involvement of the
clinicians in the clinical reference group and subgroups, and through events, such as

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstre:ﬂa@et%rch 2014 V4 28



futurefit NHS

Shaping healthcare together

webinars and meetings, designed to reach 2/3 of the clinical workforce of Shropshire
and Telford & Wrekin.

Patient representatives and patient groups will continue to be involved and co-
creating at every stage of the process.

140304 FutureFit Clinical Design Workstream Féagelvdri’h 2014 V4 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

Benefits Realisation Plan



0S abed

Benefits Realisation Plan

DESCRIPTION

INDICATOR

futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

1. IMPROVED CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS (OUTCOMES)

PERFORMANCE MONITORING REVIEW LEAD
METHOD DATE RESPONSIBILITY

Baseline Target

1.1 | Securing additional years of life for those All age, all cause mortality
with treatable conditions
Increased life expectancy
Reduction in years of life
lost <age 75
1.2 Increase in disability free life expectancy
13 Reduction in emergency admissions
1.4 Reduction in emergency occupied bed
days
1.5 | Reduction in medical outliers
1.6 | Improved quality of life for patients with
long term conditions, including mental
health conditions
1.7 | Improved QALY for specific high morbidity

conditions (e.g. COPD)

Sohgaoz3b

Page |2



Benefits Realisation Plan

2. IMPROVED EXPERIENCE OF CARE (INCLUDING ENVIRONMENT)

DESCRIPTION

INDICATOR

futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

PERFORMANCE MONITORING REVIEW LEAD
METHOD DATE RESPONSIBILITY

Baseline Target

2.1

Improvement in National Inpatient survey

[need to identify relevant
questions]

2.2

Improvement in Friends and Family score

2.3

Improvements in National Cancer Patient
Survey

[need to identify relevant
questions]

2.4

Improvements in GP satisfaction survey

2.5

TG obed

Increased number of people with mental
and physical health conditions having a
positive experience of care outside
hospital, in general practice and in the
community

2.6

Increased number of people with mental
and physical health conditions having a
positive experience of hospital care

2.7

Improved patient experience of genuinely
integrated care

2.8

Reduction in complaints

Sohgaoz3b

Page |3




Benefits Realisation Plan

futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

3. REDUCED HARM

DESCRIPTION INDICATOR PERFORMANCE MONITORING REVIEW LEAD
METHOD DATE RESPONSIBILITY
Baseline Target |
3.1 Improved infection control MRSA
C.Difficile
3.2 Reduction in Serious Incidents
0 3.3 | No never events
QD
«Q 3.4 Reduction in medicines related
@ admissions
a1
N 3.5 Eliminating avoidable deaths in
our hospitals caused by problems
in care
3.6
Sohgaoz3b Page |4



Benefits Realisation Plan

futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

4. BETTER SUPPORT FOR PEOPLE WITH LONG-TERM CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

INDICATOR

PERFORMANCE MONITORING REVIEW LEAD
METHOD DATE RESPONSIBILITY

4.1

Reduction in admissions for
ambulatory care sensitive
conditions

Baseline Target |

4.2

Increase in take up for self-care
management

4.3

Increase in patients reporting
satisfaction with being supported
to manage own condition

€G abed

4.4

Reduced time spent avoidably in
hospital through better and more
integrated care

4.5

Improved quality of life for people
with long-term condition,
including mental health conditions

4.6

Reduction in emergency
attendances/admissions for
patients with long term
conditions/nursing home residents

A&E attendances for
LTC/from nursing homes

Emergency admissions for
LTC/from nursing homes

Sohgaoz3b

Page |5



Benefits Realisation Plan futureﬂt

Shaping healthcare together

5. BETTER SUPPORT FOR PEOPLE TO LIVE INDEPENDENTLY

DESCRIPTION INDICATOR PERFORMANCE MONITORING REVIEW LEAD
METHOD DATE RESPONSIBILITY

Baseline Target |

5.1 Increase in early supported
discharge for stroke patients

5.2 Increase in number of patients
with intensive care packages

reablement/
rehabilitation/intermediate care

T supported to live at home
g 5.3 Increased take up of respite care
a 5.6 Increase in number of patients in
N

5.7 Increased the proportion of older
people living independently at
home following discharge from
hospital

5.8 Reduction in delayed transfers of
care

5.9 Increase in percentage of deaths
occurring at home/ outside of
hospital settings

5.10 | Increase in the number of patients
receiving reablement packages / %
of patients requiring no service
after reablement

5.11 | Reduction in influenza admissions

$ohgaoz3b Page |6



Benefits Realisation Plan flltureflt

Shaping healthcare together

DESCRIPTION INDICATOR PERFORMANCE MONITORING REVIEW LEAD
METHOD DATE RESPONSIBILITY

Baseline Target

5.12 | Reduction in non-qualified acute
bed days for over 65s

5.13 | Increase in support available in the
community

5.14 | Increase in care provided in less
acute settings

GG obed

Sohgaoz3b Page |7



Benefits Realisation Plan

futurefit

Shaping healthcare together

6. MOST EFFECTIVE USE OF RESOURCES

DESCRIPTION

INDICATOR

PERFORMANCE MONITORING REVIEW LEAD
METHOD DATE RESPONSIBILITY

6.1

Reduction in admissions for
patients with mental health
and/or drug/alcohol related
problems

Baseline Target |

6.2

Reduction in spend on procedures
of limited clinical value

6.3

9G abed

Reduction on acute spend on
ambulatory care sensitive
conditions

6.4

Increased commissioner spend on
care closer to home

% spend on:
e Acute hospital episodes

e Community hospital
episodes

¢ Integrated community
teams

e Mental Health

6.5

Significant reduction in excess bed
days

Zero and 27+ days LOS

6.6

Reduction in emergency
attendances/ admissions that
could be avoided by improved
community mental health or
psychiatric liaison services

Sohgaoz3b

Page |8



/G obed

Benefits Realisation Plan flltureflt

Shaping healthcare together

DESCRIPTION INDICATOR PERFORMANCE MONITORING REVIEW LEAD
METHOD DATE RESPONSIBILITY

Baseline Target

6.7 More responsible patient
behaviour (e.g. healthy living)
reduces demand

6.8 Better coordination/greater
streamlining of health and social
care produces economies

6.9 Acute hospital capacity is reduced
and clinically/financially
sustainable

$ohgaoz3b Page |9



Benefits Realisation Plan futureﬂt

Shaping healthcare together

7. EQUITABLE ACCESS TO SERVICES

DESCRIPTION INDICATOR PERFORMANCE MONITORING REVIEW LEAD
METHOD DATE RESPONSIBILITY

Baseline Target |

7.1 Increased satisfaction with access From GP satisfaction survey
toa GP

7.2 Reduction in waiting times for A&E | <4 hours

7.3 Travel time to an Accident and (minutes)
;JU Emergency hospital
L% 7.4 Compliance with all national 2WW
waiting time targets
% 8 g8 RTT
7.5 Reduction in rate of ambulance See and treat rates
activity leading to an A&E Hear and treat rates
attendance

7.6 Reduction in median waiting time
for elective admissions

7.7 Increase in non face-to-face
outpatient attendances as a
proportion of all attendances

Sohgaoz3b Page |10



Benefits Realisation Plan futureﬂt

Shaping healthcare together

8. IMPROVED STAFF RECRUITMENT, RETENTION, SATISFACTION

DESCRIPTION INDICATOR PERFORMANCE MONITORING REVIEW LEAD
METHOD DATE RESPONSIBILITY

Baseline Target |

8.1 Reduction in staff sickness absence

8.2 Reduction in staff turnover Target rate
8.3 Reduction in vacancy rates e Medical staff
¢ Nursing staff
U *  AHP staff
Q
«Q e GPs
@
ol 8.4 Improved staff satisfaction National staff survey (specific
O (including wellbeing) questions)

8.5 Reduction in agency, bank and
locum utilisation

8.6 Number of clinical vacancies filled

Sohgaoz3b Page |11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



	Agenda
	3 Update on Future Fit
	FutureFit Programme Update Appendix 1
	FutureFit Programme Update Appendix 2

	4 Future Fit Clinical Model of Care
	5 Future Fit Benefits Realisation Plan

